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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

On the north side of Stephen Decatur Memorial Road, Mary-
land Route 611, on Lower Sinepuxent Neck in Worcester County,
approximately nine miles south of United States Route 50,
stands a two-and-one<half story brick building on "Genesar"
tract. The house is in very poor condition but is being
stabilized for future restoration.

The Architectural Historian and authority on transitional
Maryland architecture, Dr. Henry Chandler Forman, FAIA,
frequently cites this building as hav1ng some of the most
unlque pattern brickwork diapering in Maryland. It has exten-
sive diamond and chevron glazed brickwork patterns, which are
covered with a nineteenth century thin coat of stucco. As
transitional architecture, it represents the hold-over forms of
mediaeval work and the earliest development towards the more
formal Georgian ideals in plan and design. Dr. Forman records
drawings of the unique interior woodwork which has been removed.
Because of these unusual architectural features it is considered
an important early Maryland building.

Its 1971 appearance is little more than a ruin. The south
facade is braced with poles extending from a trench in front

of the house to the second floor level. A portion of brickwork
in the east corner has fallen away, from the ground level to
the roof; only a few frames remain at the windows and doors.
Temporary supports have been installed to deter further decay.
Large portions of the main cornice remain in place and the
chimneys are structurally sound above the roof.

Originally, the south facade, forty-five feet in length,
had four bays at the first floor level and three bays at the
second floor level, symetrically placed. The two center bays
of the first story were formerly doors, one leading into the
stair passage, the other into the "Great Room". The first
story of the north side was similar, but had only two windows
on the second story. It had one small window at the stair
landing level.

Each gable end, 19 feet 3 1/2 inches wide, had small win-
dows at the first and second floor levels flanking the fire-
places at each floor level. On the gable at the attic floor
level there is a projecting belt course, above which is glazed
diapering. The "A" roof, pitched 51 degrees, has a "kick" to
the eave. Originally there were three dormers on the south
front, matching the one ex1st1ng dormer on the north side of
the roof. . ( S

A b awg AN [ »v- R
The interior originally had two large rooms, approximately
15 feet by 16 feet and 18 feet by 16 feet, opening from either
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE o
" \ N

The house is the only currently known structure -of its
type on the Eastern Shore of Maryland. It is in very poor
condition and is in danger of vandals and the elements. The
present owner plans to form an organization to restore the
building. It is only two miles from the visitors' center of
the Assateague National Seashore, therefore the structure
could be a potential tourist attraction as well as a credit-
able addition to the annual Maryland House and Garden Pil-
grimage.

The original Genezir land patent, consisting of 2,200
acres was granted to Colonel William Stevens in 1676. He was
appointed one of the eight commanders of the Eastern Shore in
1665; one of eight justices for Somerset County in 1666,
which county then consisted of the present counties of Somer-
set, Worcester, and Wicomico. 1In 1669, he was the represen-
tative for Somerset County to the Maryland General Assembly.
He is sometimes referred to as the first citizen of Somerset
County. Although a member of the Church of England, he was
partially responsible for the introduction of Presbyterianism
in Maryland. He resided at his plantation "Rehoboth", on the
Pocomoke River.

In 1681, Colonel Stevens sold Genezir to Edward Whaley
and Charles Ratcliffe, who in turn divided the land into two
equal parts of 1,100 acres each, Ratcliffe taking possession
of the part on which the house now stands. Charles Ratcliffe
left his dwelling plantation (700 acres) to his son Charles Jr.
in 1696, who later left it to his only daughter, Elizabeth
(1709).

John Purnell and Elizabeth Ratcliffe were married in 1719,
thus bringing the property into the Purnell family. It is
believed that the present brick house was constructed during
this period, c. 1732. 1In 1754 John Purnell willed the property
to his son 2ado€k, who at his death, willed it to his daughter,
Sally M. Spence, and after her death, to his grandson, Zadock
Spence. In 1867 it was sold to Zadock P. Henry, in

~-see continuation sheet-
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Recorder: Michael Bourne June 1970
Sources:

Forman, Henry Chandlee., 'Early‘Maner«and\Plantation\Heuseé‘6f
“Maryland. Easton, Maryland: the author, 1934,

Forman, Henry Chandlee. "Genesar on 'The Sea Board Side.'"
Maryland Historical Magazine. Vol. L (March 1955), 1-10.

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE ProrERTY |0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
Nw [ 38° 14 09 = | 750 11 28~ ° J - ° ’ "

NE | 38° 14" 09 - | 75° 11 18~
SE 1 38° 14 01 ~ | 75° 11' 18-
sw 138° 3401 =t 75° 311 18"
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STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE
NAME AND TITLE

Mrs. Preston Parish, Keeper of the Maryland Register

ORGANIZATION " |pATE

Maryland Historical Trust July 2, 1971
STREET AND NUMBER:

94 College Avenue

CITY OR TOWN: STATE CODE
Annapolis Maryland 24

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law [ hereby certify that this property is included in the

89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion National Register. . . o

in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set imujf d’? [[’\fﬂ/[A‘MIL(:{

forth by the National Park Service. The recommended - N . - —
Chief, Office of Archeology and Htstoanresetvalzon

level of significance of this nomination is:

Natignal [ State ] Local SEP 17 g‘n

e O 00 D ﬂchéru

orlando Ridout IV ATTEST:

Title _State Liaison Officer - ZZIZ{Z;&%f/7C£;;ZZZ;;<Z

for Maryland Keepeétf The/National Regxs

14 190

Date _July 6, 1971 Date
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'#6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS continued

Maryland Register of historic sites and landmarks

1969
Maryland Historical Trust
94 College Avenue ‘ ("7\ o~
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 Code: 24 AN \\é§ h
| RECEwEb

Aulj 9 9N

Perry, Shaw, and Hepburn Survey
NATIOH

1951 REGIS.

Maryland Historical Trust
94 College Avenue : »
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 Code: 24

#7. DESCRIPTION continued .

side of a central passage from which a staircase rises. The
ceiling joists were exposed with molded edges. There was
probably a partition parallel with the front of the fireplace,
creating closets beside the fireplace, which would have been
lighted by the small windows in the gable wall, according to
local practice. The second story rooms had similar treatment
but had plaster ceilings, as the beams are unmolded. Photo-
graphs and drawings are extant for the "Great Room Chamber"
(second story west room), which had three walls with raised
paneling. The fireplace wall was plastered, with closet doors
and a Federal style mantel.

The main staircase was enclosed, creating a need for the
small window recently discovered beneath the stucco on the north
facade. The brick wall is one brick thinner in the east corner,
and formerly had a small enclosed winding staircase. The small
windows were placed so that each closet and passage had a source
of light.

In the early nineteenth century, the east staircase was
removed. At the same time the enclosure of the central stair-
case was removed and it was refitted with Federal style spandrels
and balustrade. The fireplaces appear to have been altered and !

(1 of 2 continuation sheets)

~N




MHT WO=-3

Form 10-300a UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE

July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Maryland
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES [COUNTY :
Worcester
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM
7 FOR NP$ USE ONLY
ENTRY NUMBER OATE
Conti, tion Sheet —
(Continuation Sheet) 7/19;) 7d D07 S ?//7/2/

(Number all entries)
Genesar

#7. DESCRIPTION continued

the decorative ceiling beams covered with a board ceiling. The

- two exterior doors in the "Great Room" were bricked-up, made into
windows, and trimmed accordingly. Several of the small gable
windows were also bricked-up. An ornate moulded cornice with
dentils and swags was 1nstalled on the south facade, as it

appears today.

At the East end of the house lie the foundations of an early
kitchen. Photographs taken in the 1930s show a brick structure
of later date than the main house.

#8. SIGNIFICANCE continued
whose family it remained until 1939.

The present owner purchased a few acres and the house in 1966
from the Lamar Corporation. : : . : S :

#9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES continued

Forman, Henry Chandlee. Tidewater Maryland Architecture
and Gardens. New York: Bonanza Books, 1956.
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Worcester County Land Records. Worcester County Court-
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Works Progress Administration. Maryland A Guide to the
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COMMON:
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Maryland Route 611,

9 miles south of U.S.

Rt.50 (west 100 yds)
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STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE
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